# PRAYERS FOR ENCOURAGE PRAYER CALLS

And let them first pray together, so that they may associate in peace.

Benedict of Nursia

## **Table of Contents**

Monday: Page 2

Tuesday: Page 10

Wednesday: Page 17

Thursday: Page 24

Friday: Page 30

Saturday: Page 36

Sunday: Page 42

# **MONDAY**

## Prayer for the Courage and EnCourage Apostolates:

Father of Mercy and Love,

We give You thanks for the many gifts we have received from Your Providence.

Above all, as members of Courage and EnCourage

We praise and thank you for the rich legacy

You have entrusted to us through our founders.

Keep us faithful to the mission

That began in the heart of Father John Harvey

To find our true identity in You,

To strive for chastity and for all the virtues,

And to speak the Truth in love to the Church and to the world.

Bless our Bishops and our chaplains

And make them zealous and generous spiritual Fathers.

Guide and protect our families,

And grant us healing and true charity.

Open our hearts to Your grace

Which strengthens us to embrace and live Your holy will.

Renew the bonds of sincerity and affection

That enable us to form authentic friendships

With You and with one another.

Make us truly Your sons and daughters,

And fill us with Your Holy Spirit,

That we may live as true disciples,

Of Your Son Jesus Christ, our Lord

Who lives and reigns forever and ever.

All: Amen

Our Lady and Saint Joseph, pray for us.

Saint Charles Lwanga and his Companions, pray for us.

https://m.youtube.com/watch?v=lergM0h83gs

Saint Monica and Saint Augustine, pray for us.

St. Pelagio, pray for us.

Saint Benedict, pray for us.

## Monday: Novena to Our Lady of the Miraculous Medal

In the name of the Father and of the Son and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.

Come, O Holy Spirit, fill the hearts of Your faithful, and kindle in them the fire of Your love. Send forth Your Spirit, and they shall be created. And You shall renew the face of the earth. Let us pray. O God, who did instruct the hearts of the faithful by the light of the Holy Spirit, grant us in the same Spirit to be truly wise and ever to rejoice in His consolation, through Jesus Christ Our Lord. Amen.

O Mary, conceived without sin, pray for us who have recourse to you. (3 times.)

O Lord Jesus Christ, who have vouchsafed to glorify by numberless miracles the Blessed Virgin Mary, immaculate from the first moment of her conception, grant that all who devoutly implore her protection on earth, may eternally enjoy Your presence in heaven, who, with the Father and Holy Spirit, live and reign, God, for ever and ever. Amen.

O Lord Jesus Christ, who for the accomplishment of Your greatest works, have chosen the weak things of the world, that no flesh may glory in Your sight; and who for a better and more widely diffused belief in the Immaculate Conception of Your Mother, have wished that the Miraculous Medal be manifested to Saint Catherine Laboure, grant, we beseech You, that filled with like humility, we may glorify this mystery by word and work. Amen.

#### Memorare

Remember, O most compassionate Virgin Mary, that never was it known that anyone who fled to your protection, implored your assistance, or sought your intercession was left unaided. Inspired with this confidence, we fly unto you, O Virgin of Virgins, our Mother; to you we come; before you we kneel sinful and sorrowful. O Mother of the Word Incarnate, despise not our petitions, but in your clemency hear and answer them. Amen.

#### Novena Prayer

O Immaculate Virgin Mary, Mother of Our Lord Jesus and our Mother, penetrated with the most lively confidence in your all-powerful and never failing intercession, manifested so often through the Miraculous Medal, we your loving and trustful children implore you to obtain for us the graces and favors we ask during this Novena, if they be beneficial to our immortal souls, and the souls for whom we pray. (Here mention your loved one's name.)

You know, O Mary, how often our souls have been the sanctuaries of your Son who hates iniquity. Obtain for us also a spirit of prayer and self-denial that we may recover by penance what we have lost by sin and at length attain to that blessed abode where you are the Queen of angels and of men. Amen.

## An Act of Consecration to Our Lady of the Miraculous Medal

O Virgin Mother of God, Mary Immaculate, we dedicate and consecrate ourselves to you under the title of Our Lady of the Miraculous Medal. May this Medal be for each one of us a sure sign of your affection for us and a constant reminder of our duties toward you. Ever while wearing it, may be blessed by your loving protection and preserved in the grace of your Son. O most powerful Virgin, Mother of our Savior, keep us close to you every moment of our lives. Obtain for us, your children, the grace of a happy death; so that, in union with you, we may enjoy the bliss of heaven forever. Amen.

O Mary, conceived without sin, pray for us who have recourse to you. (3 times.)

#### Prayer to Our Lady of Lourdes:

O ever immaculate Virgin, Mother of mercy, health of the sick, refuge of sinners, comfort of the afflicted, you know my wants, my troubles, my sufferings; deign to cast upon me a look of mercy. By appearing in the Grotto of Lourdes, you were pleased to make it a privileged sanctuary, whence you dispense your favors, and already many sufferers have obtained the cure of their infirmities, both spiritual and corporal. I come, therefore, with the most unbounded confidence, to implore your maternal intercession for complete healing of (here mention your loved ones name). Obtain, O loving Mother, the grant of my requests. I will endeavor to imitate your virtues, that I may one day share your glory, and bless you in eternity. Amen.

#### Prayer to Our Lady of Fatima:

O Most Holy Virgin Mary, Queen of the most holy Rosary, you were pleased to appear to the children of Fatima and reveal a glorious message. We implore you, inspire in our hearts a fervent love for the recitation of the Rosary. By meditating on the mysteries of the redemption that are recalled therein may we obtain the graces and virtues that we ask, and We ask too for special graces and blessings upon our loved ones, most especially upon (here mention your loved one's name) that they too come to love the rosary and the mysteries of our redemption.

We ask this through the merits of Jesus Christ, our Lord and Redeemer.

All: Amen

#### Prayer to Our Lady of Guadalupe,

Mystical Rose, make intercession for the holy Church, protect the Sovereign Pontiff, help all those who invoke thee in their necessities, and since thou art the ever-Virgin Mary and Mother of the true God, obtain for us from thy most holy Son the grace of keeping our faith, sweet hope in the midst of the bitterness of life, burning charity and the precious gift of final perseverance. And we ask these things too for our loved ones, who now confused have wandered far from the faith. Most especially we pray this for (Here mention your loved one's name) All: Amen.

### Prayer for Godly Friendships and Against Ungodly Unions:

Heavenly Father, our loved ones need Godly friendships and companionships. In the name of Jesus Christ, we come against, and ask you to remove, any ungodly associations between our loved ones and any of their friends. We ask You to leave only good associations between our loved ones and their friends, that you break the bondage resultant from ungodly actions and associations, that You set our loved ones free. Father, send to our loved ones good and Godly friends. LORD, let those Godly friendships flourish in holiness for your glory.

Heavenly Father, You created the universe and can do all things. You created men and women in your Divine image and likeness and the marital bond to be between one man and one woman. In the name of Jesus Christ we renounce satan's lies about marriage, and exalt the goodness of marriage as created by You in Your wisdom for the benefit of children, the family and society.

We place the cross of Jesus Christ between our loved and their friends. Move our loved ones and their friends away from darkness and into Your merciful light. In Your mercy, set them free from bondage that they may know, love and serve You, that Your glory may shine through them. Father, in the name of Jesus Christ we ask You to break every ungodly union of our loved ones.

#### **CLOSING PRAYERS**

## **Prayers for our Children**

Response: Lord, hear our prayer

Lord, together with other mothers and fathers, and with other believers who share our burdens, we bring before You today, our sons and our daughters.

- That our sons and daughters will grow in their relationship with God, surrender their lives to God, and live their lives in obedience to God's will, we pray
- For their healing; that the Lord will touch them at their point of deepest need, that whatever went wrong in their lives, the Lord will heal it, we pray
- For reconciliation with our families, we pray
- That our Lord will lead them to deep forgiveness of anyone who hurt them, we pray
- For our sons and daughters who are living outside the safe care of God's perfect will, may they be protected from all physical, emotional and spiritual harm, we pray

• That our sons and daughters will become the Christian men and women our Lord created them to be, we pray

## Prayers for EnCourage Parents Response: Lord, hear our prayer

And now Lord, we bring to You petitions for our own special needs.

- That we may know unconditional love. God loves us despite our imperfections and disobedience; May we love our sons and daughters unconditionally, we pray...
- That we be granted wisdom. Our hurts, needs, disappointments and sorrows may cloud our view of our children and our relationship with them. But God sees the situation clearly. May we be granted wisdom to faithfully live out our roles in their lives, to offer them authentic love, yet live in the light of God's truth, we pray...
- For perseverance and strength to do difficult things; to let go when necessary, to stand for Truth even when Truth brings rejection. May we have the strength to let them go through suffering when God allows it for their greater blessing, we pray...
- For peace. Because we love our children, our hearts ache for them, may this hurt be tempered with the knowledge that God loves them infinitely more than we do. May we see that God's power and grace extend beyond our understanding, we pray...
- That the Lord will bring good out of our circumstances, as we seek to love Him. May we grow spiritually and may this difficult time be used to draw us into a deeper relationship with God, we pray...
- That we will surrender our children to God. We cannot change them. May we lay them at God's altar, trusting in God's power, love and mercy, we pray...
- That all siblings, friends and family members of those experiencing SSA or GID may be granted the grace to persevere faithfully, most especially we pray for... (Here mention the names of your loved ones' siblings and the names of those impacted by your loved one(s)' behavior). We pray

#### Prayer to St. Joseph

Dear Saint Joseph, foster-father of Jesus, most pure spouse of Mary, pray for us daily to Jesus that we may be defended by the power of His grace and strive to live a faithful life. Restore to the world the dignity of fatherhood. May each family become a holy family. Be father, protector and guide in the way of salvation to us, and most especially to our loved ones. [Here mention your loved ones' name(s)]. Obtain for us purity of heart and a fervent love of the interior life. May our actions glorify God, in union with Jesus and Mary. St. Joseph, head of the holy family, restore our families. Pray for us. All: Amen.

#### Prayer to St. Michael

St Michael the Archangel, defend us in battle, be our safeguard against the wickedness and snares of the devil, May God rebuke him we humbly pray and do thou, O Prince of the Heavenly Host, by the power of God, caste into hell satan and all evil spirits who prowl about the world seeking the ruin of souls. St. Michael, we ask you to especially protect and defend [here mention Your loved ones' name(s)]. All: Amen

#### **Pardon Prayers**

My God, I believe, I adore, I hope and I love You! I beg pardon for those who do not believe do not adore do not hope and do not love You. (Three times)

#### **Angel's Prayer**

O Most Holy Trinity, Father, son and Holy Spirit, I adore You profoundly. I offer You the most Precious Body, Blood Soul and Divinity of Jesus Christ present in all the tabernacles of the world, in reparation for the outrages, sacrileges and indifferences by which He is offended. By the infinite merits of the Sacred Heart of Jesus and the Immaculate Heart of Mary I beg the conversion of poor sinners. All: Amen

## **Prayer for Sanctification**

The response is: *Lord, hear our prayer*.

Heavenly Father, in the name of Jesus Christ, we ask that You:

- Sanctify our seminaries and church institutions. May each seminary and Church institution be united to Your divine will.
   We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.
- Sanctify our priests. Give to us holy priests who seek only Your will and the salvation of souls. We especially pray for Father Bochanski, all Bishops, Cardinals and our Holy Father. [Note we pray for our chaplains in the Courage/EnCourage prayer] We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.
- Sanctify our Church and its members. May our Church and its members live in accord with Your holy laws, with eyes fixed on heaven, bringing the light of the Gospel to all. We pray to the LORD
- Sanctify our Congress, Supreme Court and our nation. May our nation be a Godly nation
  with a Godly Congress and Supreme court. May our nation be a shining light of truth and
  purity, for Your glory. We especially pray for the protection of our President and Vice
  President.

We pray to the LORD

- Sanctify our world. Ignite with divine fire a Spirit of truth and purity to spread throughout the world. We pray to the LORD.
- Sanctify each human heart. May we soon see the triumph of the Immaculate Heart of Mary.

We pray to the LORD

### **Prayer for Daily Neglects:**

Eternal Father, I offer You the Sacred Heart of Jesus, with all its love, all its sufferings and all its merits.

- First: To expiate all the sins I have committed this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- <u>Second</u>: To purify the good I have done poorly this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Third: To supply for the good I ought to have done, and that I have neglected this day and all of my life. Glory be to the Father...

May the Divine Assistance remain always with us. And may the souls of the faithful departed, through the mercy of God, rest in peace.

"Watch, O Lord with those who wake or watch or weep tonight, and give your angels and saints charge over those who sleep. Tend your sick ones, O Lord Jesus Christ; rest your weary ones; bless your dying ones; soothe your suffering ones; shield your joyous ones; and all for your love's sake." Amen

"Eternal Father, I desire to rest in Your Heart this night. I make the intention of offering to You every beat of my heart, joining to them as many acts of love and desire. I pray that even while I am asleep, I will bring back to You souls that offend You. I ask forgiveness for the whole world, especially for those who know You and yet sin. I offer to You every breath and heartbeat as a prayer of reparation." Amen.

Heavenly Father, we lift our heartfelt petitions up to You in the name of the Father and the Son and the Holy Spirit. Amen."

#### **INDIVIDUAL PRAYER:**

Heavenly Father,

In the name of Jesus Christ, by the power of the Holy Spirit, through the intercession of the Immaculate Heart of Mary and Saint Joseph, we place (N) in Your loving arms today.

Bless (N) with a spirit of repentance. Bring (N) back to confession, to the Sacraments, to the Church,

but most of all bring (N) back to You merciful Father.

Fill (N) will all the gifts and fruits of the Holy Spirit. Inspire (N) to become a bold soldier for You and your Kingdom. Bless (N) with good and Godly friends, and help (N) to be a good and Godly friend to others.

Bless every member of this family with all the grace needed to persevere in faith, and unite every member of this family in truth.

We offer these three Hail Mary's for (N)

Hail Mary full of grace, the Lord is with thee, blessed are thou among women and blessed is the fruit of thy womb Jesus, Holy Mary, Mother of God, pray for us sinners now and at the hour of our death amen. (Three times)

Sacred Heart of Jesus, have mercy on (N). Immaculate Heart of Mary, pray for (N) St. Joseph, be father, protector and guide to (N). Amen +

## **TUESDAY**

### Prayer for the Courage and EnCourage Apostolates:

Father of Mercy and Love,

We give You thanks for the many gifts we have received from Your Providence.

Above all, as members of Courage and EnCourage

We praise and thank you for the rich legacy

You have entrusted to us through our founders.

Keep us faithful to the mission

That began in the heart of Father John Harvey

To find our true identity in You,

To strive for chastity and for all the virtues,

And to speak the Truth in love to the Church and to the world.

Bless our Bishops and our chaplains

And make them zealous and generous spiritual Fathers.

Guide and protect our families,

And grant us healing and true charity.

Open our hearts to Your grace

Which strengthens us to embrace and live Your holy will.

Renew the bonds of sincerity and affection

That enable us to form authentic friendships

With You and with one another.

Make us truly Your sons and daughters,

And fill us with Your Holy Spirit,

That we may live as true disciples,

Of Your Son Jesus Christ, our Lord

Who lives and reigns forever and ever.

All: Amen

Our Lady and Saint Joseph, pray for us.

Saint Charles Lwanga and his Companions, pray for us.

https://m.youtube.com/watch?v=1ergM0h83gs

Saint Monica and Saint Augustine, pray for us.

Saint Pelagio, pray for us.

Saint Benedict, pray for us.

#### The Most Holy Rosary

**The Apostles' Creed:** I believe in God the Father Almighty, Creator of heaven and earth; and in Jesus Christ, His only Son, our Lord; Who was conceived by the Holy Spirit, born of the Virgin Mary, suffered under Pontius Pilate, was crucified, died and was buried. He descended into hell. On the third day He arose again; He ascended into heaven, and sits at the right hand of God, the Father Almighty; from thence He shall come to judge the living and the dead. I believe in the Holy Ghost, the Holy Catholic Church, the communion of saints, the forgiveness of sins, the resurrection of the body, and life everlasting. Amen

**The Our Father:** Our Father, who art in heaven, hallowed be Thy name: Thy kingdom come: Thy will be done on earth as it is in heaven. Give us this day our daily bread: and forgive us our trespasses as we forgive those who trespass against us. And lead us not into temptation: but deliver us from evil. Amen.

**The Hail Mary:** Hail Mary, full of grace, the Lord is with thee: blessed art thou among women, and blessed is the fruit of thy womb, Jesus. Holy Mary, Mother of God, pray for us sinners, now and at the hour of our death. Amen

#### After each decade:

Glory be to the Father, and to the Son and to the Holy Spirit. As it was in the beginning, is now and ever shall be, world without end. Amen.

"O my Jesus, forgive us our sins, save us from the fires of hell, and lead all souls to Heaven, especially those in most need of Your Mercy".

1. The First Sorrowful Mystery: The Agony in the Garden: "In His anguish He prayed with all the greater intensity and His sweat became like drops of blood falling to the ground." Father not my will but Your will be done.

We offer this first decade up that our loved ones may know and follow God's will for their lives, with repentant hearts and in a spirit of humility.

With this rosary we bind our children to the Immaculate Heart of Mary

2. The Second Sorrowful Mystery. The scourging at the pillar: *Thank you Jesus for enduring the scourging for our sins, especially our sins of the flesh.* 

We offer this second decade up that our loved ones will be blessed with pure, authentic love. May they know the love of Jesus and the love of the Blessed Mother. LORD, show us how best to offer our loved ones authentic love. May our loved ones be blessed with purity of heart, soul, mind and body.

With this rosary we bind our children to the Immaculate Heart of Mary

3. The Third Sorrowful Mystery: The crowning with thorns: LORD, they weaved a crown of thorns and fixed it upon Your head. Cleanse those whose hearts are filled with hatred. Comfort those who are mocked and humiliated.

We offer this third decade up that our loved ones will be blessed with hope, wisdom, joy and good and Godly friendships. May they be blessed with the moral courage they need to resist temptation and lead a holy life.\_May all women be blessed with authentic femininity and all men with authentic masculinity.

With this rosary we bind our children to the Immaculate Heart of Mary

4. The Fourth Sorrowful Mystery: The Carrying of the Cross: *LORD*, *grant us the grace to carry our crosses with you*.

We offer this fourth decade up that our loved ones may be blessed with fortitude and constancy in their efforts to follow the Lord.

With this rosary we bind our children to the Immaculate Heart of Mary

5. The Fifth Sorrowful Mystery: The Crucifixion: Father, forgive them for they know not what they do.

We offer this fifth decade up that our loved ones may die to sinfulness and realize the value of sacrifice in the journey of faith. May they be blessed with ongoing spiritual growth. May they see through, and renounce, satan and all his evil works and empty promises.

With this rosary we bind our children to the Immaculate Heart of Mary

The Hail, Holy Queen: Hail, holy Queen, Mother of Mercy! our life, our sweetness, and our hope! To thee do we cry, poor banished children of Eve; to thee do we send up our sighs, mourning and weeping in this valley, of tears. Turn, then, most gracious Advocate, thine eyes of mercy toward us; and after this our exile show unto us the blessed fruit of thy womb, Jesus; O clement, O loving, O sweet Virgin Mary. Pray for us O Holy Mother of God. That we may be made worthy of the promises of Christ.

**Let Us Pray:** "O God whose only begotten Son by His Life, by his life, death and resurrection has purchased for us the rewards of eternal life, Grant that we beseech Thee while meditating upon these mysteries of the Most Holy Rosary of the Blessed Virgin Mary, we may imitate what they contain and obtain what they promise, through the same Christ our Lord Amen."

#### **CLOSING PRAYERS**

**Prayers for our Children** 

Response: Lord, hear our prayer

Lord, together with other mothers and fathers, and with other believers who share our burdens, we bring before You today, our sons and our daughters.

- That our sons and daughters will grow in their relationship with God, surrender their lives to God, and live their lives in obedience to God's will, we pray
- For their healing; that the Lord will touch them at their point of deepest need, that whatever went wrong in their lives, the Lord will heal it, we pray
- For reconciliation with our families, we pray
- That our Lord will lead them to deep forgiveness of anyone who hurt them, we pray

- For our sons and daughters who are living outside the safe care of God's perfect will, may they be protected from all physical, emotional and spiritual harm, we pray
- That our sons and daughters will become the Christian men and women our Lord created them to be, we pray

## Prayers for EnCourage Parents Response: Lord, hear our prayer

And now Lord, we bring to You petitions for our own special needs.

- That we may know unconditional love. God loves us despite our imperfections and disobedience; May we love our sons and daughters unconditionally, we pray...
- That we be granted wisdom. Our hurts, needs, disappointments and sorrows may cloud our view of our children and our relationship with them. But God sees the situation clearly. May we be granted wisdom to faithfully live out our roles in their lives, to offer them authentic love, yet live in the light of God's truth, we pray...
- For perseverance and strength to do difficult things; to let go when necessary, to stand for Truth even when Truth brings rejection. May we have the strength to let them go through suffering when God allows it for their greater blessing, we pray...
- For peace. Because we love our children, our hearts ache for them, may this hurt be tempered with the knowledge that God loves them infinitely more than we do. May we see that God's power and grace extend beyond our understanding, we pray...
- That the Lord will bring good out of our circumstances, as we seek to love Him. May we grow spiritually and may this difficult time be used to draw us into a deeper relationship with God, we pray...
- That we will surrender our children to God. We cannot change them. May we lay them at God's altar, trusting in God's power, love and mercy, we pray...
- That all siblings, friends and family members of those experiencing SSA or GID may be granted the grace to persevere faithfully, most especially we pray for... (Here mention the names of your loved ones' siblings and the names of those impacted by your loved one(s)' behavior). We pray

## Prayer to St. Joseph

Dear Saint Joseph, foster-father of Jesus, most pure spouse of Mary, pray for us daily to Jesus that we may be defended by the power of His grace and strive to live a faithful life. Restore to the world the dignity of fatherhood. May each family become a holy family. Be father, protector and guide in the way of salvation to us, and most especially to our loved ones. [Here mention your loved ones' name(s)]. Obtain for us purity of heart and a fervent love of the interior life. May our actions glorify God, in union with Jesus and Mary. St. Joseph, head of the holy family, restore our families. Pray for us. All: Amen.

#### Prayer to St. Michael

St Michael the Archangel, defend us in battle, be our safeguard against the wickedness and snares of the devil, May God rebuke him we humbly pray and do thou, O Prince of the Heavenly Host, by the power of God, caste into hell satan and all evil spirits who prowl about the world seeking the ruin of souls. St. Michael, we ask you to especially protect and defend [here mention Your loved ones' name(s)]. All: Amen

### **Pardon Prayers**

My God, I believe, I adore, I hope and I love You! I beg pardon for those who do not believe do not adore do not hope and do not love You. (Three times)

#### Angel's Prayer

O Most Holy Trinity, Father, son and Holy Spirit, I adore You profoundly. I offer You the most Precious Body, Blood Soul and Divinity of Jesus Christ present in all the tabernacles of the world, in reparation for the outrages, sacrileges and indifferences by which He is offended. By the infinite merits of the Sacred Heart of Jesus and the Immaculate Heart of Mary I beg the conversion of poor sinners. All: Amen

### **Prayer for Sanctification**

The response is: *Lord, hear our prayer*.

Heavenly Father, in the name of Jesus Christ, we ask that You:

- Sanctify our seminaries and church institutions. May each seminary and Church institution be united to Your divine will.

  We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.
- Sanctify our priests. Give to us holy priests who seek only Your will and the salvation of souls. We especially pray for Father Bochanski, all Bishops, Cardinals and our Holy Father. [Note we pray for our chaplains in the Courage/EnCourage prayer] We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.
- Sanctify our Church and its members. May our Church and its members live in accord with Your holy laws, with eyes fixed on heaven, bringing the light of the Gospel to all. We pray to the LORD
- Sanctify our Congress, Supreme Court and our nation. May our nation be a Godly nation
  with a Godly Congress and Supreme court. May our nation be a shining light of truth and
  purity, for Your glory. We especially pray for the protection of our President and Vice
  President.

We pray to the LORD

• Sanctify our world. Ignite with divine fire a Spirit of truth and purity to spread throughout the world. We pray to the LORD.

• Sanctify each human heart. May we soon see the triumph of the Immaculate Heart of Mary.

We pray to the LORD

#### **Prayer for Daily Neglects:**

Eternal Father, I offer You the Sacred Heart of Jesus, with all its love, all its sufferings and all its merits,

- First: To expiate all the sins I have committed this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Second: To purify the good I have done poorly this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Third: To supply for the good I ought to have done, and that I have neglected this day and all of my life. Glory be to the Father...

#### May the Divine Assistance remain always with us.

And may the souls of the faithful departed, through the mercy of God, rest in peace.

"Watch, O Lord with those who wake or watch or weep tonight, and give your angels and saints charge over those who sleep. Tend your sick ones, O Lord Christ; rest your weary ones; bless your dying ones; soothe your suffering ones; pity your afflicted ones, shield your joyous ones; and all for your love's sake." Amen

**'Eternal Father, I desire to rest in Your Heart this night**. I make the intention of offering to You every beat of my heart, joining to them as many acts of love and desire. I pray that even while I am asleep, I will bring back to You souls that offend You. I ask forgiveness for the whole world, especially for those who know You and yet sin. I offer to You every breath and heartbeat as a prayer of reparation.' Amen.

Heavenly Father, we lift our heartfelt petitions up to You in the name of the Father and the Son and the Holy Spirit. Amen."

#### **INDIVIDUAL PRAYER:**

Heavenly Father,

In the name of Jesus Christ, by the power of the Holy Spirit, through the intercession of the Immaculate Heart of Mary and Saint Joseph, we place (N) in Your loving arms today.

Bless (N) with a spirit of repentance. Bring (N) back to confession, to the Sacraments, to the Church, but most of all bring (N) back to You merciful Father.

Fill (N) will all the gifts and fruits of the Holy Spirit. Inspire (N) to become a bold soldier for You and your Kingdom. Bless (N) with good and Godly friends, and help (N) to be a good and Godly friend to others.

Bless every member of this family with all the grace needed to persevere in faith, and unite every member of this family in truth.

We offer these three Hail Mary's for (N)

Hail Mary full of grace, the Lord is with thee, blessed are thou among women and blessed is the fruit of thy womb Jesus, Holy Mary, Mother of God, pray for us sinners now and at the hour of our death amen. (Three times)

Sacred Heart of Jesus, have mercy on (N). Immaculate Heart of Mary, pray for (N) St. Joseph, be father, protector and guide to (N). Amen +

#### WEDNESDAY

## **Prayer for the Courage and EnCourage Apostolates:**

Father of Mercy and Love,

We give You thanks for the many gifts we have received from Your Providence.

Above all, as members of Courage and EnCourage

We praise and thank you for the rich legacy

You have entrusted to us through our founders.

Keep us faithful to the mission

That began in the heart of Father John Harvey

To find our true identity in You,

To strive for chastity and for all the virtues,

And to speak the Truth in love to the Church and to the world.

Bless our Bishops and our chaplains

And make them zealous and generous spiritual Fathers.

Guide and protect our families,

And grant us healing and true charity.

Open our hearts to Your grace

Which strengthens us to embrace and live Your holy will.

Renew the bonds of sincerity and affection

That enable us to form authentic friendships

With You and with one another.

Make us truly Your sons and daughters,

And fill us with Your Holy Spirit,

That we may live as true disciples,

Of Your Son Jesus Christ, our Lord

Who lives and reigns forever and ever.

All: Amen

Our Lady and Saint Joseph, pray for us.

Saint Charles Lwanga and his Companions, pray for us.

Saint Monica and Saint Augustine, pray for us.

St. Pelagio, pray for us.

Saint Benedict, pray for us.

## Wednesday: Novena to Our Mother of Perpetual Help

Mother of Perpetual Help, look upon us your children. We are proud to be your children and happy to call you our Mother. We are not all we ought to be, so we come to you our Mother. You are always ready to accept us as we are, to encourage us to do better, in spite of temptation and weakness.

As we look at your picture, we remember your life on earth. You had many crosses and trials but you knew how to face them. You had faith and trust in God. You relied on His loving, fatherly goodness. Help us to be like you. We too have or trials and troubles. We are often worried and confused. Give us courage. Strengthen our faith.

Help us to make one more effort when we are inclined to despair. As you stood at the foot of the cross, you found it hard to see how God could allow His Son to suffer such agony. Yet you never lost faith. Help us to learn from your examples to face our trials with confidence and trust in God.

Sometimes loving Mother, we are so worried about our own problems, we forget about God and the needs of other. We want to be like you. You forgot about yourself and your own problems when you saw others in need. When we pray with you for our own special intentions, we include those of all your children in need: the sick and the dying, the lonely and broken-hearted, the poor and oppressed, those souls who find themselves lost and far from God--in a word, all who need your perpetual help. Amen.

## **Mother of Perpetual Help, Litany of Petitions:**

The response is: Mother ever help us

*Petitions for all:* 

- Mother of Perpetual Help, your children call on you.
- That you may ever be our inspiration
- That we may have courage to face up to all our difficulties
- That we may see meaning in the joys and sorrows of life
- That our trust in God may help others too
- When faced with difficult decisions
- When hurt or tempted to take revenge
- In all our worries and in our misunderstandings with those we love
- That we may be honest and humble in all that we do.

#### Petitions for our country:

- That our country and our loved ones may once more embrace marriage as between one man and one woman.
- That the women in our country may embrace authentic femininity and the men in our country may embrace authentic masculinity.

#### Petitions for our loved ones:

- That our loved ones may come to see their true identity as God's beloved children, made in His divine image and likeness.
- That our loved ones may embrace chastity and be blessed with purity of heart, soul, mind and body.
- That our loved ones may renounce satan and all his evil works and empty promises, and be released from the snares of the devil to find their true love and hope in God.
- That our loved ones may be blessed with humility and repentant hearts
- That our loved ones may always love the saints, sacraments and all things holy and strive to live holy lives.
- That our loved ones may be blessed with hope, wisdom and joy, and with good and Godly friendships.
- That our loved ones may be blessed with spiritual growth, and may grow to please God more each day.
- That our loved ones may be blessed with the courage and fortitude they need to resist temptation.

And now Mary please help and heal our individual loved ones. You know most each of their needs. Touch their hearts with your motherly love, and bring them to your Son. Most especially we pray for (Here mention your loved one's name.)

Let us pray.

Let us thank our Mother of Perpetual help

Holy Mary, you always help those who are in need. You comfort those who weep, encourage those who have lost hope and help us lead good Christian lives. We thank you Mother of Perpetual help for the graces and favors we and others have received through your intercession. O Mother of Perpetual help with grateful hearts we join in thanking God for all the wonderful things He has done for us.

O God our Creator, we thank You for the gift of life and the gift of authentic Christian marriage. We thank you for creating us distinctly male and female. We thank you for creating us in your divine image and likeness for your glory.

We thank you Father for giving us Mary, the Mother of Your Son to be our Mother of Perpetual Help. We are grateful for all the favors we have received through her intercession. We pray that those past favors may inspire us to greater confidence in your loving mercy, and inspire us to continue to seek the aid of Our Mother of Perpetual Help. Amen

## **Litany of Mary**

### The response is: Pray for us.

- Holy Mother of God, pray for us.
- Holy Virgin of Virgins, pray for us.
- Morning Star, pray for us.
- Comfort of the Afflicted, pray for us.
- Mother of Christ, pray for us.
- Mother of Our Savior, pray for us.
- Cause of our Joy, pray for us,
- Virgin Most Venerable, pray for us.
- Virgin most Powerful, pray for us.

All powerful and merciful LORD, You give us the picture of the Mother of your Son to venerate under the title of Our Mother of Perpetual help. Graciously grant that in all the difficulties of our lives we may be assisted by the continuous protection of the Virgin Mary and obtain the reward of eternal redemption. You Who live and reign forever and ever. Amen

Glory be to the Father...

#### **CLOSING PRAYERS**

**Prayers for our Children** 

Response: Lord, hear our prayer

Lord, together with other mothers and fathers, and with other believers who share our burdens, we bring before You today, our sons and our daughters.

- That our sons and daughters will grow in their relationship with God, surrender their lives to God, and live their lives in obedience to God's will, we pray
- For their healing; that the Lord will touch them at their point of deepest need, that whatever went wrong in their lives, the Lord will heal it, we pray
- For reconciliation with our families, we pray
- That our Lord will lead them to deep forgiveness of anyone who hurt them, we pray
- For our sons and daughters who are living outside the safe care of God's perfect will, may they be protected from all physical, emotional and spiritual harm, we pray
- That our sons and daughters will become the Christian men and women our Lord created them to be, we pray

## Prayers for EnCourage Parents Response: Lord, hear our prayer

And now Lord, we bring to You petitions for our own special needs.

- That we may know unconditional love. God loves us despite our imperfections and disobedience; May we love our sons and daughters unconditionally, we pray...
- That we be granted wisdom. Our hurts, needs, disappointments and sorrows may cloud our view of our children and our relationship with them. But God sees the situation clearly. May we be granted wisdom to faithfully live out our roles in their lives, to offer them authentic love, yet live in the light of God's truth, we pray...
- For perseverance and strength to do difficult things; to let go when necessary, to stand for Truth even when Truth brings rejection. May we have the strength to let them go through suffering when God allows it for their greater blessing, we pray...
- For peace. Because we love our children, our hearts ache for them, may this hurt be tempered with the knowledge that God loves them infinitely more than we do. May we see that God's power and grace extend beyond our understanding, we pray...
- That the Lord will bring good out of our circumstances, as we seek to love Him. May we grow spiritually and may this difficult time be used to draw us into a deeper relationship with God, we pray...
- That we will surrender our children to God. We cannot change them. May we lay them at God's altar, trusting in God's power, love and mercy, we pray...

• That all siblings, friends and family members of those experiencing SSA or GID may be granted the grace to persevere faithfully, most especially we pray for... (Here mention the names of your loved ones' siblings and the names of those impacted by your loved one(s)' behavior). We pray

### Prayer to St. Joseph

Dear Saint Joseph, foster-father of Jesus, most pure spouse of Mary, pray for us daily to Jesus that we may be defended by the power of His grace and strive to live a faithful life. Restore to the world the dignity of fatherhood. May each family become a holy family. Be father, protector and guide in the way of salvation to us, and most especially to our loved ones. [Here mention your loved ones' name(s)]. Obtain for us purity of heart and a fervent love of the interior life. May our actions glorify God, in union with Jesus and Mary. St. Joseph, head of the holy family, restore our families. Pray for us. All: Amen.

#### Prayer to St. Michael

St Michael the Archangel, defend us in battle, be our safeguard against the wickedness and snares of the devil, May God rebuke him we humbly pray and do thou, O Prince of the Heavenly Host, by the power of God, caste into hell satan and all evil spirits who prowl about the world seeking the ruin of souls. St. Michael, we ask you to especially protect and defend [here mention Your loved ones' name(s)]. All: Amen

#### **Pardon Prayers**

My God, I believe, I adore, I hope and I love You! I beg pardon for those who do not believe do not adore do not hope and do not love You. (Three times)

## Angel's Prayer

O Most Holy Trinity, Father, son and Holy Spirit, I adore You profoundly. I offer You the most Precious Body, Blood Soul and Divinity of Jesus Christ present in all the tabernacles of the world, in reparation for the outrages, sacrileges and indifferences by which He is offended. By the infinite merits of the Sacred Heart of Jesus and the Immaculate Heart of Mary I beg the conversion of poor sinners. All: Amen

#### **Prayer for Sanctification**

The response is: *Lord, hear our prayer*.

Heavenly Father, in the name of Jesus Christ, we ask that You:

- Sanctify our seminaries and church institutions. May each seminary and Church institution be united to Your divine will.
   We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.
- Sanctify our priests. Give to us holy priests who seek only Your will and the salvation of souls. We especially pray for Father Bochanski, all Bishops, Cardinals and our Holy Father. [Note we pray for our chaplains in the Courage/EnCourage prayer] We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.

- Sanctify our Church and its members. May our Church and its members live in accord with Your holy laws, with eyes fixed on heaven, bringing the light of the Gospel to all. We pray to the LORD
- Sanctify our Congress, Supreme Court and our nation. May our nation be a Godly nation with a Godly Congress and Supreme court. May our nation be a shining light of truth and purity, for Your glory. We especially pray for the protection of our President and Vice President.

We pray to the LORD

- Sanctify our world. Ignite with divine fire a Spirit of truth and purity to spread throughout the world. We pray to the LORD.
- Sanctify each human heart. May we soon see the triumph of the Immaculate Heart of Mary.

We pray to the LORD

### **Prayer for Daily Neglects:**

Eternal Father, I offer You the Sacred Heart of Jesus, with all its love, all its sufferings and all its merits.

- First: To expiate all the sins I have committed this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Second: To purify the good I have done poorly this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Third: To supply for the good I ought to have done, and that I have neglected this day and all of my life. Glory be to the Father...

### May the Divine Assistance remain always with us.

And may the souls of the faithful departed, through the mercy of God, rest in peace.

"Watch, O Lord with those who wake or watch or weep tonight,

and give your angels and saints charge over those who sleep.

Tend your sick ones,

O Lord Christ;

rest your weary ones;

bless your dying ones;

soothe your suffering ones;

pity your afflicted ones,

shield your joyous ones;

and all for your love's sake." Amen

**Eternal Father, I desire to rest in Your Heart this night**. I make the intention of offering to You every beat of my heart, joining to them as many acts of love and desire. I pray that even while I am asleep, I will bring back to You souls that offend You. I ask forgiveness for the

whole world, especially for those who know You and yet sin. I offer to You every breath and heartbeat as a prayer of reparation.' Amen.

Heavenly Father, we lift our heartfelt petitions up to You in the name of the Father and the Son and the Holy Spirit. Amen."

## **THURSDAY**

## **Prayer for the Courage and EnCourage Apostolates:**

Father of Mercy and Love,

We give You thanks for the many gifts we have received from Your Providence.

Above all, as members of Courage and EnCourage

We praise and thank you for the rich legacy

You have entrusted to us through our founders.

Keep us faithful to the mission

That began in the heart of Father John Harvey

To find our true identity in You,

To strive for chastity and for all the virtues,

And to speak the Truth in love to the Church and to the world.

Bless our Bishops and our chaplains

And make them zealous and generous spiritual Fathers.

Guide and protect our families,

And grant us healing and true charity.

Open our hearts to Your grace

Which strengthens us to embrace and live Your holy will.

Renew the bonds of sincerity and affection

That enable us to form authentic friendships

With You and with one another.

Make us truly Your sons and daughters,

And fill us with Your Holy Spirit,

That we may live as true disciples,

Of Your Son Jesus Christ, our Lord

Who lives and reigns forever and ever.

All: Amen

Our Lady and Saint Joseph, pray for us.

Saint Charles Lwanga and his Companions, pray for us.

https://m.youtube.com/watch?v=1ergM0h83gs

Saint Monica and Saint Augustine, pray for us.

St. Pelagius, pray for us.

Saint Benedict, pray for us.

#### Litany of the Most Precious Blood of Jesus

Lord, have mercy. R: *Lord, have mercy* Christ, have mercy. R: *Christ, have mercy* 

Lord, have mercy. R: Lord, have mercy.

Christ, hear us. R: Christ graciously hear us

God, the Father of Heaven, R: Have mercy on us

God, the Son, Redeemer of the world, R: Have mercy on us

God, the Holy Spirit. R: Have mercy on us

Holy Trinity, One God, R: Have mercy on us

The response changes to "save us."

Blood of Christ, only-begotten Son of the Eternal Father, R. save us

Blood of Christ, Incarnate Word of God, R. save us

Blood of Christ, of the New and Eternal Testament, R. save us

Blood of Christ, falling upon the earth in the Agony, R. save us

Blood of Christ, shed profusely in the Scourging, R. save us

Blood of Christ, flowing forth in the Crowning with Thorns, R. save us

Blood of Christ, poured out on the Cross, R. save us

Blood of Christ, price of our salvation, R. save us

Blood of Christ, without which there is no forgiveness. R. save us

Blood of Christ, Eucharistic drink and refreshment of souls, R. save us

Blood of Christ, stream of mercy, R. save us

Blood of Christ, victor over demons, R. save us

Blood of Christ, courage of Martyrs, R. save us

Blood of Christ, strength of Confessors, R. save us

Blood of Christ, bringing forth Virgins, R. save us

Blood of Christ, help of those in peril, R. save us

Blood of Christ, relief of the burdened, R. save us

Blood of Christ, solace in sorrow, R. save us

Blood of Christ, hope of the penitent, R. save us

Blood of Christ, consolation of the dying, R. save us

Blood of Christ, peace and tenderness of hearts, R. save us

Blood of Christ, pledge of eternal life, R. save us

Blood of Christ, freeing souls from purgatory, R. save us

Blood of Christ, most worthy of all glory and honor, R. save us

Lamb of God, who take away the sins of the world.

R: Spare us O Lord.

Lamb of God, who take away the sins of the world,

R: Graciously hear us, O Lord.

Lamb of God, who take away the sins of the world,

R: Have mercy on us.

You have redeemed us, O Lord, in your Blood.

R: And made us, for our God, a Kingdom

Let us pray, Almighty and eternal God, you have appointed your only-begotten Son the Redeemer of the world, and willed to be appeased by his Blood. Grant we beg of you, that we may worthily adore this price of our salvation, and through its power be safeguarded from the evils of the present life, so that we may rejoice in its fruits forever in heaven. Through the same Christ our Lord. *Amen.* 

**Prayer to St Aloysius Gonzaga:** O Saint Aloysius, adorned with angelical virtues, although I am thy unworthy servant, I commend to thee most earnestly the chastity of the soul and body of (Here mention your loved one's name) I pray thee, by thy angelical purity, to commend them to the Immaculate Lamb, Jesus Christ, and to His most Holy Mother, the Virgin of virgins. Preserve them from every grievous sin. Permit them not to defile themselves by any spot of impurity; and

whenever thou seest them in temptation or danger of sin, banish far from their hearts every impure thought and affection. Awaken in them the thought of eternity and of Jesus Crucified; imprint deeply in their hearts a lively sentiment of the holy fear of God. Inflame thee with divine love, and grant them the grace that by imitating thee on earth, They may merit to enjoy God with thee in heaven. Amen.

#### **CLOSING PRAYERS**

## **Prayers for our Children**

Response: Lord, hear our prayer

Lord, together with other mothers and fathers, and with other believers who share our burdens, we bring before You today, our sons and our daughters.

- That our sons and daughters will grow in their relationship with God, surrender their lives to God, and live their lives in obedience to God's will, we pray
- For their healing; that the Lord will touch them at their point of deepest need, that whatever went wrong in their lives, the Lord will heal it, we pray
- For reconciliation with our families, we pray
- That our Lord will lead them to deep forgiveness of anyone who hurt them, we pray
- For our sons and daughters who are living outside the safe care of God's perfect will, may they be protected from all physical, emotional and spiritual harm, we pray
- That our sons and daughters will become the Christian men and women our Lord created them to be, we pray

## Prayers for EnCourage Parents Response: Lord, hear our prayer

And now Lord, we bring to You petitions for our own special needs.

- That we may know unconditional love. God loves us despite our imperfections and disobedience; May we love our sons and daughters unconditionally, we pray...
- That we be granted wisdom. Our hurts, needs, disappointments and sorrows may cloud our view of our children and our relationship with them. But God sees the situation clearly. May we be granted wisdom to faithfully live out our roles in their lives, to offer them authentic love, yet live in the light of God's truth, we pray...
- For perseverance and strength to do difficult things; to let go when necessary, to stand for Truth even when Truth brings rejection. May we have the strength to let them go through suffering when God allows it for their greater blessing, we pray...

- For peace. Because we love our children, our hearts ache for them, may this hurt be tempered with the knowledge that God loves them infinitely more than we do. May we see that God's power and grace extend beyond our understanding, we pray...
- That the Lord will bring good out of our circumstances, as we seek to love Him. May we grow spiritually and may this difficult time be used to draw us into a deeper relationship with God, we pray...
- That we will surrender our children to God. We cannot change them. May we lay them at God's altar, trusting in God's power, love and mercy, we pray...
- That all siblings, friends and family members of those experiencing SSA or GID may be granted the grace to persevere faithfully, most especially we pray for (Here mention the names of your loved ones' siblings and the names of those impacted by your loved one(s)' behavior). We pray

### Prayer to St. Joseph

Dear Saint Joseph, foster-father of Jesus, most pure spouse of Mary, pray for us daily to Jesus that we may be defended by the power of His grace and strive to live a faithful life. Restore to the world the dignity of fatherhood. May each family become a holy family. Be father, protector and guide in the way of salvation to us, and most especially to [here mention Your loved ones' name(s)]. Obtain for us purity of heart and a fervent love of the interior life. May our actions glorify God, in union with Jesus and Mary. St. Joseph, head of the holy family, restore our families. Pray for us.

All: Amen.

#### Prayer to St. Michael

St Michael the Archangel, defend us in battle, be our safeguard against the wickedness and snares of the devil, May God rebuke him we humbly pray and do thou, O Prince of the Heavenly Host, by the power of God, caste into hell satan and all evil spirits who prowl about the world seeking the ruin of souls. St. Michael, we ask you to especially protect and defend [here mention Your loved ones' name(s)].

All: Amen

#### **Pardon Prayers**

My God, I believe, I adore, I hope and I love You! I beg pardon for those who do not believe do not adore do not hope and do not love You. (Three times)

### **Angel's Prayer**

O Most Holy Trinity, Father, son and Holy Spirit, I adore You profoundly. I offer You the most Precious Body, Blood Soul and Divinity of Jesus Christ present in all the tabernacles of the world, in reparation for the outrages, sacrileges and indifferences by which He is offended. By the infinite merits of the Sacred Heart of Jesus and the Immaculate Heart of Mary I beg the conversion of poor sinners.

#### All: Amen

### **Prayer for Sanctification**

The response is: *Lord, hear our prayer*.

Heavenly Father, in the name of Jesus Christ, we ask that You:

- Sanctify our seminaries and church institutions. May each seminary and Church institution be united to Your divine will.
   We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.
- Sanctify our priests. Give to us holy priests who seek only Your will and the salvation of souls. We especially pray for Father Bochanski, all Bishops, Cardinals and our Holy Father.

We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.

- Sanctify our Church and its members. May our Church and its members live in accord with Your holy laws, with eyes fixed on heaven, bringing the light of the Gospel to all. We pray to the LORD
- Sanctify our Congress, Supreme Court and our nation. May our nation be a Godly nation
  with a Godly Congress and Supreme court. May our nation be a shining light of truth and
  purity, for Your glory. We especially pray for the protection of our President and Vice
  President.

*We pray to the LORD* 

- Sanctify our world. Ignite with divine fire a Spirit of truth and purity to spread throughout the world. We pray to the LORD.
- Sanctify each human heart. May we soon see the triumph of the Immaculate Heart of Mary.

*We pray to the LORD* 

#### **Prayer for Daily Neglects:**

Eternal Father, I offer You the Sacred Heart of Jesus, with all its love, all its sufferings and all its merits,

- First: To expiate all the sins I have committed this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Second: To purify the good I have done poorly this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Third: To supply for the good I ought to have done, and that I have neglected this day and all of my life. Glory be to the Father...

May the Divine Assistance remain always with us.

And may the souls of the faithful departed, through the mercy of God, rest in peace.

"Watch, O Lord with those who wake or watch or weep tonight, and give your angels and saints charge over those who sleep. Tend your sick ones, O Lord Christ; rest your weary ones; bless your dying ones; soothe your suffering ones; pity your afflicted ones, shield your joyous ones; and all for your love's sake." Amen

**'Eternal Father, I desire to rest in Your Heart this night**. I make the intention of offering to You every beat of my heart, joining to them as many acts of love and desire. I pray that even while I am asleep, I will bring back to You souls that offend You. I ask forgiveness for the whole world, especially for those who know You and yet sin. I offer to You every breath and heartbeat as a prayer of reparation.' Amen.

Heavenly Father, we lift our heartfelt petitions up to You in the name of the Father and the Son and the Holy Spirit. Amen."

## **FRIDAY**

## **Prayer for the Courage and EnCourage Apostolates:**

Father of Mercy and Love,

We give You thanks for the many gifts we have received from Your Providence.

Above all, as members of Courage and EnCourage

We praise and thank you for the rich legacy

You have entrusted to us through our founders.

Keep us faithful to the mission

That began in the heart of Father John Harvey

To find our true identity in You,

To strive for chastity and for all the virtues,

And to speak the Truth in love to the Church and to the world.

Bless our Bishops and our chaplains

And make them zealous and generous spiritual Fathers.

Guide and protect our families,

And grant us healing and true charity.

Open our hearts to Your grace

Which strengthens us to embrace and live Your holy will.

Renew the bonds of sincerity and affection

That enable us to form authentic friendships

With You and with one another.

Make us truly Your sons and daughters,

And fill us with Your Holy Spirit,

That we may live as true disciples,

Of Your Son Jesus Christ, our Lord

Who lives and reigns forever and ever.

All: Amen

Our Lady and Saint Joseph, pray for us.

Saint Charles Lwanga and his Companions, pray for us.

https://m.youtube.com/watch?v=1ergM0h83gs

Saint Monica and Saint Augustine, pray for us.

St. Pelagio, pray for us.

Saint Benedict, pray for us.

# The Chaplet of The Divine Mercy

#### 1. Make the Sign of the Cross

In the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.

#### 2. Opening Prayers

You expired, Jesus, but the source of life gushed forth for souls, and the ocean of mercy opened up for the whole world. O Fount of Life, unfathomable Divine Mercy, envelop the whole world

and empty Yourself out upon us.

(Repeat three times)

O Blood and Water, which gushed forth from the Heart of Jesus as a fountain of Mercy for us, I trust in You!

#### 3. Our Father

Our Father, Who art in heaven, hallowed be Thy name; Thy kingdom come; Thy will be done on earth as it is in heaven. Give us this day our daily bread; and forgive us our trespasses as we forgive those who trespass against us; and lead us not into temptation, but deliver us from evil, Amen.

### 4. Hail Mary

Hail Mary, full of grace. The Lord is with thee. Blessed art thou amongst women, and blessed is the fruit of thy womb, Jesus. Holy Mary, Mother of God, pray for us sinners, now and at the hour of our death, Amen.

## 5. The Apostle's Creed

I believe in God, the Father almighty, Creator of heaven and earth, and in Jesus Christ, His only Son, our Lord, who was conceived by the Holy Spirit, born of the Virgin Mary, suffered under Pontius Pilate, was crucified, died and was buried; He descended into hell; on the third day He rose again from the dead; He ascended into heaven, and is seated at the right hand of God the Father almighty; from there He will come to judge the living and the dead. I believe in the Holy Spirit, the holy catholic Church, the communion of saints, the forgiveness of sins, the resurrection of the body, and life everlasting. Amen.

#### 6. The Eternal Father

Eternal Father, I offer you the Body and Blood, Soul and Divinity of Your Dearly Beloved Son, Our Lord, Jesus Christ, in atonement for our sins and those of the whole world.

#### 7. On the Ten Small Beads of Each Decade

For the sake of His sorrowful Passion, have mercy on us and on the whole world.

#### 8. Repeat for the remaining decades

Saying the "Eternal Father" (6) on the "Our Father" bead and then 10 "For the sake of His sorrowful Passion" (7) on the following "Hail Mary" beads.

#### 9. Conclude with Holy God (Repeat three times)

Holy God, Holy Mighty One, Holy Immortal One, have mercy on us and on the whole world.

#### 10. Closing Prayer

Eternal God, in whom mercy is endless and the treasury of compassion — inexhaustible, look kindly upon us and increase Your mercy in us, that in difficult moments we might not despair nor become despondent, but with great confidence submit ourselves to Your holy will, which is Love and Mercy itself.

"O Greatly Merciful God, Infinite Goodness, today all mankind calls out from the abyss of its misery to Your mercy - to Your compassion, O God; and it is with its mighty voice of misery that it cries out. Gracious God, do not reject the prayer of this earth's exiles! O Lord, Goodness beyond our understanding, Who are acquainted with our misery through and through, and know that by our own power we cannot ascend to You, we implore You: anticipate us with Your grace and keep on increasing Your mercy in us, that we may faithfully do Your holy will all through

our life and at death's hour. Let the omnipotence of Your mercy shield us from the darts of our salvation's enemies, that we may with confidence, as Your children, await Your final coming - that day known to You alone. And we expect to obtain everything promised us by Jesus in spite of all our wretchedness. For Jesus is our Hope: Through His merciful Heart, as through an open gate, we pass through to heaven (Diary 1570)."

### **CLOSING PRAYERS**

## **Prayers for our Children**

Response: Lord, hear our prayer

Lord, together with other mothers and fathers, and with other believers who share our burdens, we bring before You today, our sons and our daughters.

- That our sons and daughters will grow in their relationship with God, surrender their lives to God, and live their lives in obedience to God's will, we pray
- For their healing; that the Lord will touch them at their point of deepest need, that whatever went wrong in their lives, the Lord will heal it, we pray
- For reconciliation with our families, we pray
- That our Lord will lead them to deep forgiveness of anyone who hurt them, we pray
- For our sons and daughters who are living outside the safe care of God's perfect will, may they be protected from all physical, emotional and spiritual harm, we pray
- That our sons and daughters will become the Christian men and women our Lord created them to be, we pray

## Prayers for EnCourage Parents Response: Lord, hear our prayer

And now Lord, we bring to You petitions for our own special needs.

- That we may know unconditional love. God loves us despite our imperfections and disobedience; May we love our sons and daughters unconditionally, we pray...
- That we be granted wisdom. Our hurts, needs, disappointments and sorrows may cloud our view of our children and our relationship with them. But God sees the situation clearly. May we be granted wisdom to faithfully live out our roles in their lives, to offer them authentic love, yet live in the light of God's truth, we pray...
- For perseverance and strength to do difficult things; to let go when necessary, to stand for Truth even when Truth brings rejection. May we have the strength to let them go through suffering when God allows it for their greater blessing, we pray...
- For peace. Because we love our children, our hearts ache for them, may this hurt be tempered with the knowledge that God loves them infinitely more than we

- do. May we see that God's power and grace extend beyond our understanding, we pray...
- That the Lord will bring good out of our circumstances, as we seek to love Him. May we grow spiritually and may this difficult time be used to draw us into a deeper relationship with God, we pray...
- That we will surrender our children to God. We cannot change them. May we lay them at God's altar, trusting in God's power, love and mercy, we pray...
- That all siblings, friends and family members of those experiencing SSA or GID may be granted the grace to persevere faithfully, most especially we pray for... (Here mention the names of your loved ones' siblings and the names of those impacted by your loved one(s)' behavior). We pray

#### Prayer to St. Joseph

Dear Saint Joseph, foster-father of Jesus, most pure spouse of Mary, pray for us daily to Jesus that we may be defended by the power of His grace and strive to live a faithful life. Restore to the world the dignity of fatherhood. May each family become a holy family. Be father, protector and guide in the way of salvation to us, and most especially to our loved ones. [Here mention your loved ones' name(s)]. Obtain for us purity of heart and a fervent love of the interior life. May our actions glorify God, in union with Jesus and Mary. St. Joseph, head of the holy family, restore our families. Pray for us. All: Amen.

#### Prayer to St. Michael

St Michael the Archangel, defend us in battle, be our safeguard against the wickedness and snares of the devil, May God rebuke him we humbly pray and do thou, O Prince of the Heavenly Host, by the power of God, caste into hell satan and all evil spirits who prowl about the world seeking the ruin of souls. St. Michael, we ask you to especially protect and defend [here mention Your loved ones' name(s)]. All: Amen

#### **Pardon Prayers**

My God, I believe, I adore, I hope and I love You! I beg pardon for those who do not believe do not adore do not hope and do not love You. (Three times)

#### **Angel's Prayer**

O Most Holy Trinity, Father, son and Holy Spirit, I adore You profoundly. I offer You the most Precious Body, Blood Soul and Divinity of Jesus Christ present in all the tabernacles of the world, in reparation for the outrages, sacrileges and indifferences by which He is offended. By the infinite merits of the Sacred Heart of Jesus and the Immaculate Heart of Mary I beg the conversion of poor sinners. All: Amen

#### **Prayer for Sanctification**

The response is: *Lord, hear our prayer*.

Heavenly Father, in the name of Jesus Christ, we ask that You:

• Sanctify our seminaries and church institutions. May each seminary and Church institution be united to Your divine will.

We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.

 Sanctify our priests. Give to us holy priests who seek only Your will and the salvation of souls. We especially pray for Father Bochanski, all Bishops, Cardinals and our Holy Father.

We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.

- Sanctify our Church and its members. May our Church and its members live in accord with Your holy laws, with eyes fixed on heaven, bringing the light of the Gospel to all. We pray to the LORD
- Sanctify our Congress, Supreme Court and our nation. May our nation be a Godly nation with a Godly Congress and Supreme court. May our nation be a shining light of truth and purity, for Your glory. We especially pray for the protection of our President and Vice President.

We pray to the LORD

- Sanctify our world. Ignite with divine fire a Spirit of truth and purity to spread throughout the world. We pray to the LORD.
- Sanctify each human heart. May we soon see the triumph of the Immaculate Heart of Mary.

We pray to the LORD

#### **Prayer for Daily Neglects:**

Eternal Father, I offer You the Sacred Heart of Jesus, with all its love, all its sufferings and all its merits,

- First: To expiate all the sins I have committed this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- <u>Second</u>: To purify the good I have done poorly this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Third: To supply for the good I ought to have done, and that I have neglected this day and all of my life. Glory be to the Father...

#### May the Divine Assistance remain always with us.

And may the souls of the faithful departed, through the mercy of God, rest in peace.

"Watch, O Lord with those who wake or watch or weep tonight, and give your angels and saints charge over those who sleep. Tend your sick ones, O Lord Christ; rest your weary ones; bless your dying ones;

soothe your suffering ones; pity your afflicted ones, shield your joyous ones; and all for your love's sake." Amen

**'Eternal Father, I desire to rest in Your Heart this night**. I make the intention of offering to You every beat of my heart, joining to them as many acts of love and desire. I pray that even while I am asleep, I will bring back to You souls that offend You. I ask forgiveness for the whole world, especially for those who know You and yet sin. I offer to You every breath and heartbeat as a prayer of reparation.' Amen.

Heavenly Father, we lift our heartfelt petitions up to You in the name of the Father and the Son and the Holy Spirit. Amen."

## **SATURDAY**

## **Prayer for the Courage and EnCourage Apostolates:**

Father of Mercy and Love,

We give You thanks for the many gifts we have received from Your Providence.

Above all, as members of Courage and EnCourage

We praise and thank you for the rich legacy

You have entrusted to us through our founders.

Keep us faithful to the mission

That began in the heart of Father John Harvey

To find our true identity in You,

To strive for chastity and for all the virtues,

And to speak the Truth in love to the Church and to the world.

Bless our Bishops and our chaplains

And make them zealous and generous spiritual Fathers.

Guide and protect our families,

And grant us healing and true charity.

Open our hearts to Your grace

Which strengthens us to embrace and live Your holy will.

Renew the bonds of sincerity and affection

That enable us to form authentic friendships

With You and with one another.

Make us truly Your sons and daughters,

And fill us with Your Holy Spirit,

That we may live as true disciples,

Of Your Son Jesus Christ, our Lord

Who lives and reigns forever and ever.

All: Amen

Our Lady and Saint Joseph, pray for us.

Saint Charles Lwanga and his Companions, pray for us.

Saint Monica and Saint Augustine, pray for us.

Saint Pelagio, pray for us.

Saint Benedict, pray for us.

#### Saturday: The Chaplet of St. Michael

O God, come to my assistance. O Lord, make haste to help me. Glory be to the Father, etc.

[Say one Our Father and three Hail Mary's after each of the following nine salutations in honor of the nine Choirs of Angels]

- First Salutation: By the intercession of St. Michael and the celestial Choir of Seraphim may the Lord make us worthy to burn with the fire of perfect charity.

  Amen.
- Second Salutation: By the intercession of St. Michael and the celestial Choir of Cherubim may the Lord grant us the grace to leave the ways of sin and run in the paths of Christian perfection.
- Third salutation: By the intercession of St. Michael and the celestial Choir of Thrones
  may the Lord infuse into our hearts a true and sincere spirit of humility.

  Amen
- Fourth salutation: By the intercession of St. Michael and the celestial Choir of Dominations may the Lord give us grace to govern our senses and overcome any unruly passions.

Amen.

Amen.

- Fifth salutation: By the intercession of St. Michael and the celestial Choir of Virtues may the Lord preserve us from evil and falling into temptation. Amen.
- Sixth salutation: By the intercession of St. Michael and the celestial Choir of Powers may the Lord protect our souls against the snares and temptations of the devil.
   Amen.
- Seventh salutation: By the intercession of St. Michael and the celestial Choir of Principalities may God fill our souls with a true spirit of obedience. Amen.
- Eighth salutation: By the intercession of St. Michael and the celestial Choir of Archangels may the Lord give us perseverance in faith and in all good works in order that we may attain the glory of Heaven.
- Ninth salutation: By the intercession of St. Michael and the celestial Choir of Angels may
  the Lord grant us to be protected by them in this mortal life and conducted in the life to
  come to Heaven.
   Amen.

Say one Our Father in honor of each of the following leading Angels:

- St. Michael.
- St. Gabriel,
- St. Raphael
- our Guardian Angels and the Guardian angels of all of our loved ones.

## **Concluding prayers for St. Michael Chaplet:**

O glorious prince St. Michael, chief and commander of the heavenly hosts, guardian of souls, vanquisher of rebel spirits, servant in the house of the Divine King and our admirable conductor, you who shine with excellence and superhuman virtue deliver us from all evil, who turn to you with confidence and enable us by your gracious protection to serve God more and more faithfully every day.

Pray for us, O glorious St. Michael, Prince of the Church of Jesus Christ, that we may be made worthy of His promises.

**Prayer to St Dymphna:** Lord God, Who has graciously chosen **St. Dymphna** to be the patroness of those afflicted with **nervous and mental disorders** and has caused her to be an inspiration and a symbol of charity to the thousands who invoke her intercession, grant, through the prayers of this pure, youthful martyr, relief and consolation to all who suffer from these disturbances, and especially to those for whom we now pray: (Here mention your loved ones' name).

We beg thee to accept and to satisfy the prayers of St Dymphna on our behalf. Grant us patience in all our sufferings and resignation to thy divine Will. Fill us with hope, and if it be in accord with thy divine plan, bestow on our loved ones the cure we so earnestly ask for. Through Christ our Lord.

Amen

### **CLOSING PRAYERS**

# **Prayers for our Children**

Response: Lord, hear our prayer

Lord, together with other mothers and fathers, and with other believers who share our burdens, we bring before You today, our sons and our daughters.

- That our sons and daughters will grow in their relationship with God, surrender their lives to God, and live their lives in obedience to God's will, we pray
- For their healing; that the Lord will touch them at their point of deepest need, that whatever went wrong in their lives, the Lord will heal it, we pray
- For reconciliation with our families, we pray
- That our Lord will lead them to deep forgiveness of anyone who hurt them, we pray
- For our sons and daughters who are living outside the safe care of God's perfect will, may they be protected from all physical, emotional and spiritual harm, we pray
- That our sons and daughters will become the Christian men and women our Lord created them to be, we pray

# **Prayers for EnCourage Parents**

## Response: Lord, hear our prayer

And now Lord, we bring to You petitions for our own special needs.

• That we may know unconditional love. God loves us despite our imperfections and disobedience; May we love our sons and daughters unconditionally, we pray...

- That we be granted wisdom. Our hurts, needs, disappointments and sorrows may cloud our view of our children and our relationship with them. But God sees the situation clearly. May we be granted wisdom to faithfully live out our roles in their lives, to offer them authentic love, yet live in the light of God's truth, we pray...
- For perseverance and strength to do difficult things; to let go when necessary, to stand for Truth even when Truth brings rejection. May we have the strength to let them go through suffering when God allows it for their greater blessing, we pray...
- For peace. Because we love our children, our hearts ache for them, may this hurt be tempered with the knowledge that God loves them infinitely more than we do. May we see that God's power and grace extend beyond our understanding, we pray...
- That the Lord will bring good out of our circumstances, as we seek to love Him. May we grow spiritually and may this difficult time be used to draw us into a deeper relationship with God, we pray...
- That we will surrender our children to God. We cannot change them. May we lay them at God's altar, trusting in God's power, love and mercy, we pray...
- That all siblings, friends and family members of those experiencing SSA or GID may be granted the grace to persevere faithfully, most especially we pray for... (Here mention the names of your loved ones' siblings and the names of those impacted by your loved one(s)' behavior). We pray

#### Prayer to St. Joseph

Dear Saint Joseph, foster-father of Jesus, most pure spouse of Mary, pray for us daily to Jesus that we may be defended by the power of His grace and strive to live a faithful life. Restore to the world the dignity of fatherhood. May each family become a holy family. Be father, protector and guide in the way of salvation to us, and most especially to our loved ones. [Here mention your loved ones' name(s)]. Obtain for us purity of heart and a fervent love of the interior life. May our actions glorify God, in union with Jesus and Mary. St. Joseph, head of the holy family, restore our families. Pray for us. All: Amen.

### Prayer to St. Michael

St Michael the Archangel, defend us in battle, be our safeguard against the wickedness and snares of the devil, May God rebuke him we humbly pray and do thou, O Prince of the Heavenly Host, by the power of God, caste into hell satan and all evil spirits who prowl about the world seeking the ruin of souls. St. Michael, we ask you to especially protect and defend [here mention Your loved ones' name(s)]. All: Amen

#### **Pardon Prayers**

My God, I believe, I adore, I hope and I love You! I beg pardon for those who do not believe do not adore do not hope and do not love You. (Three times)

### Angel's Prayer

O Most Holy Trinity, Father, son and Holy Spirit, I adore You profoundly. I offer You the most Precious Body, Blood Soul and Divinity of Jesus Christ present in all the tabernacles of the world, in reparation for the outrages, sacrileges and indifferences by which He is offended. By the infinite merits of the Sacred Heart of Jesus and the Immaculate Heart of Mary I beg the conversion of poor sinners. All: Amen

## **Prayer for Sanctification**

The response is: Lord, hear our prayer.

Heavenly Father, in the name of Jesus Christ, we ask that You:

- Sanctify our seminaries and church institutions. May each seminary and Church institution be united to Your divine will.

  We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.
- Sanctify our priests. Give to us holy priests who seek only Your will and the salvation of souls. We especially pray for Father Bochanski, all Bishops, Cardinals and our Holy Father.

We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.

- Sanctify our Church and its members. May our Church and its members live in accord with Your holy laws, with eyes fixed on heaven, bringing the light of the Gospel to all. We pray to the LORD
- Sanctify our Congress, Supreme Court and our nation. May our nation be a Godly nation with a Godly Congress and Supreme court. May our nation be a shining light of truth and purity, for Your glory. We especially pray for the protection of our President and Vice President.

*We pray to the LORD* 

- Sanctify our world. Ignite with divine fire a Spirit of truth and purity to spread throughout the world. We pray to the LORD.
- Sanctify each human heart. May we soon see the triumph of the Immaculate Heart of Mary.

We pray to the LORD

#### **Prayer for Daily Neglects:**

Eternal Father, I offer You the Sacred Heart of Jesus, with all its love, all its sufferings and all its merits,

- First: To expiate all the sins I have committed this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Second: To purify the good I have done poorly this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...

• Third: To supply for the good I ought to have done, and that I have neglected this day and all of my life. Glory be to the Father...

May the Divine Assistance remain always with us.

And may the souls of the faithful departed, through the mercy of God, rest in peace.

"Watch, O Lord with those who wake or watch or weep tonight, and give your angels and saints charge over those who sleep. Tend your sick ones, O Lord Christ; rest your weary ones; bless your dying ones; soothe your suffering ones; pity your afflicted ones, shield your joyous ones; and all for your love's sake." Amen

**'Eternal Father, I desire to rest in Your Heart this night**. I make the intention of offering to You every beat of my heart, joining to them as many acts of love and desire. I pray that even while I am asleep, I will bring back to You souls that offend You. I ask forgiveness for the whole world, especially for those who know You and yet sin. I offer to You every breath and heartbeat as a prayer of reparation.' Amen.

**Heavenly Father, we lift our heartfelt petitions** up to You in the name of the Father and the Son and the Holy Spirit. Amen."

# **SUNDAY**

# **Prayer for the Courage and EnCourage Apostolates:**

Father of Mercy and Love,

We give You thanks for the many gifts we have received from Your Providence.

Above all, as members of Courage and EnCourage

We praise and thank you for the rich legacy

You have entrusted to us through our founders.

Keep us faithful to the mission

That began in the heart of Father John Harvey

To find our true identity in You,

To strive for chastity and for all the virtues,

And to speak the Truth in love to the Church and to the world.

Bless our Bishops and our chaplains

And make them zealous and generous spiritual Fathers.

Guide and protect our families,

And grant us healing and true charity.

Open our hearts to Your grace

Which strengthens us to embrace and live Your holy will.

Renew the bonds of sincerity and affection

That enable us to form authentic friendships

With You and with one another.

Make us truly Your sons and daughters,

And fill us with Your Holy Spirit,

That we may live as true disciples,

Of Your Son Jesus Christ, our Lord

Who lives and reigns forever and ever. All: Amen

Our Lady and Saint Joseph, pray for us.

Saint Charles Lwanga and his Companions, pray for us.

Saint Monica and Saint Augustine, pray for us.

Saint Pelagio, pray for us.

Saint Benedict, pray for us.

# **Litany of the Saints**

Lord, have mercy on us.

R: Lord have mercy on us.

Christ, have mercy on us.

R: Christ have mercy on us.

Lord, have mercy on us.

R: Lord, have mercy on us

Christ, hear us.

R: Christ, graciously hear us.

God, the Father of heaven,
God the Son, Redeemer of the world,
God the Holy Spirit,
Holy Trinity, one God,
have mercy on us.
have mercy on us.
have mercy on us.

Holy Mary, pray for us. Holy Mother of God, pray for us. Holy Virgin of virgins, pray for us. St. Michael, pray for us. St. Gabriel. pray for us. St. Raphael, pray for us. All you Holy Angels and Archangels, pray for us. St. John the Baptist, pray for us. St. Joseph, pray for us. All you Holy Patriarchs and Prophets, pray for us.

St. Peter, pray for us. St. Paul, pray for us. St. Andrew, pray for us. St. James. pray for us. St. John, pray for us. St. Thomas. pray for us. St. James, the less pray for us. St. Philip, pray for us. St. Bartholomew, pray for us. St. Matthew. pray for us. St. Simon, pray for us. St. Jude, pray for us. St. Matthias. pray for us. St. Barnabas, pray for us. St. Luke, pray for us. St. Mark, pray for us. All you holy Apostles and pray for us. Evangelists, pray for us.

All you holy Disciples of the Lord,

All you holy Innocents,

St. Stephen, pray for us.
St. Lawrence, pray for us.
St. Vincent, pray for us.

Sts. Fabian and Sebastian, Sts. John and Paul, Sts. Cosmas and Damian, All you holy Martyrs,	pray for us. pray for us. pray for us. pray for us.
St. Sylvester, St. Gregory, St. Ambrose,	pray for us. pray for us. pray for us.
St. Jerome, St. Martin, St. Nicholas, All you holy Bishops and Confessors, All you holy Doctors,	pray for us. pray for us. pray for us. pray for us.
St. Anthony, St. Benedict, St. Bernard, St. Dominic, St. Francis, All you holy Priests and Levites, All you holy Monks and Hermits,	pray for us. pray for us. pray for us. pray for us. pray for us. pray for us. pray for us.
St. Charles Lwanga and Companion Martyrs St. Mary Magdalene, St. Therese Saints Louis and Zelie Martin Saints Ann and Joachim St. John Bosco St. Aloysius St. Philomena St. Maria Goretti St. Monica St. Rita St. Dymphna St. Padre Pio St. Gerard St. Teresa of Calcutta	pray for us.
St. Agatha, St. Lucy, St. Agnes, St. Cecilia,	

St. Anastasia,

St. Catherine,

St. Clare,

All you holy Virgins and Widows,

All you holy Saints of God,

Blessed Pier Giorgio

Venerable Archbishop Fulton J. Sheen *pray for us*.

Lord, be merciful, Lord, save your people. From all evil, Lord, save your people. From all sin. Lord, save your people. Lord, save your people. From your wrath, From a sudden and unprovided death, Lord, save your people. From the snares of the devil. Lord, save your people. From anger, hatred, and all ill-will, Lord, save your people. From the spirit of uncleanness, Lord, save your people. From lightning and tempest, Lord, save your people. From the scourge of earthquake, Lord, save your people. From plague, famine, and war, Lord, save your people. From everlasting death, Lord, save your people From all forms of sexual impurity and Lord, save your people. disorder

By the mystery of your holy Lord, save your people. Incarnation, Lord, save your people. By your Coming, Lord, save your people. By your Birth, Lord, save your people. By your Baptism and holy fasting, Lord, save your people. By your Cross and Passion, Lord, save your people. By your Death and Burial, Lord, save your people. By your holy Resurrection, Lord, save your people. By your wonderful Ascension, Lord, save your people. By the coming of the Holy Spirit, Lord, save your people.

On the day of judgment,

Be merciful to us sinners,

That you will spare us,

That you will pardon us,

That it may please you to bring us to

Lord, hear our prayer.

Lord, hear our prayer.

Lord, hear our prayer.

Lord, hear our prayer.

true

penance, Lord, hear our prayer.

Guide and protect your holy Church, Lord, hear our prayer.

Preserve in holy religion the Pope, and Lord, hear our prayer.

all Lord, hear our prayer.

those in holy Orders,

Lord, hear our prayer.

Lord, hear our prayer.

Lord, hear our prayer.

Humble the enemies of holy Church, Lord, hear our prayer.

Give peace and unity to the whole

Christian

people,

Bring back to the unity of the Church all

those who are straying, and bring

all

unbelievers to the light of the

Gospel, Lord, hear our prayer.

Strengthen and preserve us in your holy

service, Lord, hear our prayer.

Raise our minds to desire the things of heaven,

Lord, hear our prayer.

Deliver our souls and the souls of our loved ones from eternal damnation,

Give and preserve the fruits of the earth.

Lord, hear our prayer.

Grant eternal rest to all the faithful departed,

That it may please You to hear and heed

us, Jesus, Son of the Living God,

Lamb of God, who takes away the sins of

the world,

R: Spare us O Lord!

Lamb of God, who takes away the sins of

the world,

R: Graciously hear us, O Lord!

Lamb of God, who takes away the sins of

the world.

R: Have mercy on us.

Christ, hear us,

R: Christ, graciously hear us

Lord Jesus, hear our prayer.

R; Lord Jesus, hear our prayer.

Lord, have mercy on us.

R: Lord have mercy on us.

Christ, have mercy on us.

R: Christ have mercy on us

Lord, have mercy on us.

R: Lord, have mercy on us.

### **CLOSING PRAYERS**

# **Prayers for our Children**

Response: Lord, hear our prayer

Lord, together with other mothers and fathers, and with other believers who share our burdens, we bring before You today, our sons and our daughters.

- That our sons and daughters will grow in their relationship with God, surrender their lives to God, and live their lives in obedience to God's will, we pray
- For their healing; that the Lord will touch them at their point of deepest need, that whatever went wrong in their lives, the Lord will heal it, we pray
- For reconciliation with our families, we pray
- That our Lord will lead them to deep forgiveness of anyone who hurt them, we pray
- For our sons and daughters who are living outside the safe care of God's perfect will, may they be protected from all physical, emotional and spiritual harm, we pray
- That our sons and daughters will become the Christian men and women our Lord created them to be, we pray

# Prayers for EnCourage Parents Response: Lord, hear our prayer

And now Lord, we bring to You petitions for our own special needs.

- That we may know unconditional love. God loves us despite our imperfections and disobedience; May we love our sons and daughters unconditionally, we pray...
- That we be granted wisdom. Our hurts, needs, disappointments and sorrows may cloud our view of our children and our relationship with them. But God sees the situation clearly. May we be granted wisdom to faithfully live out our roles in their lives, to offer them authentic love, yet live in the light of God's truth, we pray...
- For perseverance and strength to do difficult things; to let go when necessary, to stand for Truth even when Truth brings rejection. May we have the strength to let them go through suffering when God allows it for their greater blessing, we pray...

- For peace. Because we love our children, our hearts ache for them, may this hurt be tempered with the knowledge that God loves them infinitely more than we do. May we see that God's power and grace extend beyond our understanding, we pray...
- That the Lord will bring good out of our circumstances, as we seek to love Him. May we grow spiritually and may this difficult time be used to draw us into a deeper relationship with God, we pray...
- That we will surrender our children to God. We cannot change them. May we lay them at God's altar, trusting in God's power, love and mercy, we pray...
- That all siblings, friends and family members of those experiencing SSA or GID may be granted the grace to persevere faithfully, most especially we pray for... (Here mention the names of your loved ones' siblings and the names of those impacted by your loved one(s)' behavior). We pray

## Prayer to St. Joseph

Dear Saint Joseph, foster-father of Jesus, most pure spouse of Mary, pray for us daily to Jesus that we may be defended by the power of His grace and strive to live a faithful life. Restore to the world the dignity of fatherhood. May each family become a holy family. Be father, protector and guide in the way of salvation to us, and most especially to our loved ones. [Here mention your loved ones' name(s)]. Obtain for us purity of heart and a fervent love of the interior life. May our actions glorify God, in union with Jesus and Mary. St. Joseph, head of the holy family, restore our families.. Pray for us. All: Amen.

### Prayer to St. Michael

St Michael the Archangel, defend us in battle, be our safeguard against the wickedness and snares of the devil, May God rebuke him we humbly pray and do thou, O Prince of the Heavenly Host, by the power of God, caste into hell satan and all evil spirits who prowl about the world seeking the ruin of souls. St. Michael, we ask you to especially protect and defend [here mention Your loved ones' name(s)]. All: Amen

### **Pardon Prayers**

My God, I believe, I adore, I hope and I love You! I beg pardon for those who do not believe do not adore do not hope and do not love You. (Three times)

### **Angel's Prayer**

O Most Holy Trinity, Father, son and Holy Spirit, I adore You profoundly. I offer You the most Precious Body, Blood Soul and Divinity of Jesus Christ present in all the tabernacles of the world, in reparation for the outrages, sacrileges and indifferences by which He is offended. By the infinite merits of the Sacred Heart of Jesus and the Immaculate Heart of Mary I beg the conversion of poor sinners. All: Amen

### **Prayer for Sanctification**

The response is: *Lord, hear our prayer.* 

Heavenly Father, in the name of Jesus Christ, we ask that You:

- Sanctify our seminaries and church institutions. May each seminary and Church institution be united to Your divine will.
  - We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.
- Sanctify our priests. Give to us holy priests who seek only Your will and the salvation of souls. We especially pray for Father Bochanski, all Bishops, Cardinals and our Holy Father.
  - We pray to the LORD... LORD, hear our prayer.
- Sanctify our Church and its members. May our Church and its members live in accord with Your holy laws, with eyes fixed on heaven, bringing the light of the Gospel to all. We pray to the LORD
- Sanctify our Congress, Supreme Court and our nation. May our nation be a Godly nation
  with a Godly Congress and Supreme court. May our nation be a shining light of truth and
  purity, for Your glory. We especially pray for the protection of our President and Vice
  President.
  - We pray to the LORD
- Sanctify our world. Ignite with divine fire a Spirit of truth and purity to spread throughout the world. We pray to the LORD.
- Sanctify each human heart. May we soon see the triumph of the Immaculate Heart of Mary.

We pray to the LORD

#### **Prayer for Daily Neglects:**

Eternal Father, I offer You the Sacred Heart of Jesus, with all its love, all its sufferings and all its merits,

- First: To expiate all the sins I have committed this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Second: To purify the good I have done poorly this day and during all of my life. Glory be to the Father...
- Third: To supply for the good I ought to have done, and that I have neglected this day and all of my life. Glory be to the Father...

### May the Divine Assistance remain always with us.

And may the souls of the faithful departed, through the mercy of God, rest in peace.

Watch, O Lord with those who wake or watch or weep tonight, and give your angels and saints charge over those who sleep.

Tend your sick ones, O Lord Christ; rest your weary ones; bless your dying ones; soothe your suffering ones; pity your afflicted ones, shield your joyous ones; and all for your love's sake. Amen

**Eternal Father, I desire to rest in Your Heart this night**. I make the intention of offering to You every beat of my heart, joining to them as many acts of love and desire. I pray that even while I am asleep, I will bring back to You souls that offend You. I ask forgiveness for the whole world, especially for those who know You and yet sin. I offer to You every breath and heartbeat as a prayer of reparation. Amen.

**Heavenly Father, we lift our heartfelt petitions** up to You in the name of the Father and the Son and the Holy Spirit. Amen."